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P-ROCEEDI-NGS
6:36 p. m

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Good eveni ng, | adi es
and gentlenmen. This is a public hearing of the Zoning
Comm ssion of the District of Colunbia for Mnday,
January 23rd, 2006

My name is Carol Mtten and joining me
this evening are Vice-chairman Anthony Hood and
Comm ssi oner M chael Turnbull .

The subject of this evening's hearing is
Zoni ng Conmm ssion Case No. 05-18. This is a request
by Hope 7 Mnroe Street, LP for approval of a
consol i dat ed pl anned unit devel opnent and rel ated nap
anmendnent fromC-2-Ato C3-Afor property | ocated at
1020 Monroe Street, N.W, which is known as Lot 820 in
Squar e 2840.

Copi es of today's notice of hearing was
posted in the D.C. Register on Decenber 9th, 2005 and
copi es of the hearing announcenent are available to
you on the table by the door.

This hearing wll be conducted in
accordance with the provisions of 11 D.C MR Section
3022 and the order of procedure will be as foll ows.
W'l take up any prelimnary matters foll owed by the

presentation of the Applicant's case, the report by
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the Ofice of Planning, the report by any other
Government agencies, the report by the affected
Advi sory Nei ghborhood Conm ssion; inthis caseit's 1-
A, organi zations and persons in support and
or gani zati ons and persons in opposition.

The following time constraints will be
mai ntained in this hearing. The Applicant will have
60 m nutes for their presentation, organizations wll
have five mnutes and individuals will have three
m nutes. The Commi ssion intends to adhere to the tine
l[imts as strictly as possible in order to hear the
case in a reasonable period of time. The Commi ssion
reserves the right to change the tine limts for
presentations if necessary and notes that no tine
shall be ceded. And you can tell how much tine you

have by the clock up on either side of the dais.

Al per sons appeari ng bef ore t he
Conmi ssion are to fill out two witness cards. Those
cards are also on the table near the door. Upon

com ng forward to speak to the Commi ssi on, pl ease give
both cards to the reporter who's sitting to our right,
and she's hol ding up sanples of the cards as well.

Pl ease be advised that this proceeding is
bei ng recorded by the court reporter. Accordingly, we

ask you to refrain from maki ng any di sruptive noi ses
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in the hearing room Wen presenting information to
t he Comm ssion, we ask you to conme have a seat at the
tabl e and then turn on and speak into the m crophone,
first stating your name and hone address. Wen you're
finished speaking, please turn the mcrophone off
because they tend to pick up background noi se.

The decision of the Commission in this
case nust be based exclusively on the public record.
To avoid any appearance to the <contrary, the
Comm ssion requests that persons present not engage
t he nenbers of the Conmi ssion in conversation during
a recess or at any other tine. If you have any
procedural questions during the hearing, you can
direct those to Ms. Schellin.

|'"d ask you to turn off all beepers and
cell phones now so as not to disrupt the hearing.

And now we'll take up any prelimnary
matters. Ms. Schellin?

MRS. SCHELLIN:. Staff has no prelimnary
matters.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:. kay. Ms. @G ordano,
did you have any prelimnary matters?

MS. G ORDANO

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. Ckay. Then |I'd ask
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6
anyone who's planning on testifying this evening rise
now, raise your right hand and direct your attention
to Ms. Schellin and she'll adm nister the oath.

(The witnesses were sworn.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN.  Thank you. So now
we're ready to have the Applicant's case presentati on.

M5. G ORDANG Good evening, Madam
Chai rperson and Menbers of the Conm ssion. Cynthia
G ordano, Arnold & Porter Law Firm for the record
Just recently joining this teamand |I'm here nore on
an as-needed basis.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Ckay.

M5. G ORDANO So you won't hear too nuch
fromme this evening.

Wth that, I'm going to turn the
presentation over to M. Hall.

CHAl RPERSON M TTEN. Ckay. Did you need
the screen to cone down? Do you want to project
something, or is that just for you?

MR. HALL: Actually --

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: | need you to turn on
the m crophone. Just identify vyourself for the
record.

MR. HALL: Yes, ny nane is Rob Hall. [|I'm

t he executive director of Hope 7, |ncorporated, which
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is the general partner of the Applicant in the case.

Madam Conmi ssioner, | thought that the
machine in here wasn't operational. If it's
operational, we'd love to use it because we don't have
our --

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  You need a proj ection
device, that's all.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  The don't --

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Ch, you don't have --

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  They didn't bring
one.

M5. G ORDANG  They don't have that and
ours is not up and running yet.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Ch, okay.

M5. G CRDANO Yes, we're not back.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. Okay. Then as he's
putting those up, he probably wants us to see themas
opposed -- it's nore inportant that we see them as
opposed to the audience.

MR. HALL: Ckay.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: So rmaybe you want to
turn around.

MR, HALL: Ckay. Al right. So what
we're going to do thenis we're going to work fromthe

boards t hat we have show ng fl oor pl ans and el evati ons
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essentially. And | will work from nmy presentation
here that you will not be able to see, but "Il be
abl e to communi cat e.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: And if you wanted to
print out your presentation and submit it for the
record, that would be fine.

MR. HALL: Ckay.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: After.

MR. HALL: Thank you. Just want to have
a nonment to set up here, if you'll indulge us.

Al right. As they're setting up, |I'm
going to begin the introduction.

Good evening. Once again, ny nane i s Rob
Hal | . I'"'m the executive director of Hope 7,
| ncor porated, whichis a501-C- 3 desi gnat ed af f ordabl e
housi ng devel opment corporation based here in the
District. W are presenting a project this evening
called the Sage. It is a mxed use and m xed i ncomne
condom ni um conmunity, to be that, we're presenting
obviously to the Zoning Commi ssion for the District.

And t he purpose of our presentationis for
consi dering Case No. 05-18 application byu t he owner,
which i s Hope 7 Monroe Street, Limted Partnership for
a consolidated planned unit devel opnent and rel ated

map amendnment at the site of 1020 Monroe Street, N. W,
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The devel opment team we have nenbers of
our devel opnent teamhere tonight. O course, Hope 7,
Inc., the architectural firmhas representatives here
t oni ght . The firm is called PG\ W have M.
Canetrick Nesmth and Sean Pi chon here fromthat firm

The construction managenent firmfor the
project is Sherrod Hawki ns Seeim Consulting. MVs.
Sherrod is here as well. We'd just note for the
record that both of these entities are LSDBE firns and
this is a flagship project for both of these entities
as well. And obviously we have the assi stance of the
our Arnold & Porter, Ms. @G ordano.

|"mgoing to start first by di scussingthe
exi sting conditions of the building. You can't see
the existing conditions right now. Maybe Canetrick
can help nme out there in describing it.

Ch, great. Oh, okay.

That doesn't actually -- yes, it doesn't
actually represent the existing conditions, but
essentially what exists today is the first floor four
stories of that building in general. It is a four-
story brick m xed-use building. It's located on the
sout heast corner of 11th and Mnroe Streets, N W

There are 22 existing residential units and six retai
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units existing. The building is now zoned C2-A It
was built in about 1935. The lot that it covers is
11,910 square feet and it currently has a |l ot coverage
of 76 percent. | believe CG2-A normally would be 60
percent, but because it was built prior to the
i nposition of those regulations, it's 76 percent now.
The height is approximtely 45 feet and the current
FAR is 2.85.

The condition of the building in general
is fair to poor, obviously which is why we'd like to
do the redevel opnent. And the retail is significantly
under-utilized. It's certainly seen better days.
There were just a couple of entities there when we
acquired the building and we'd like to make that
situation rmuch better, that conmercial corridor. W
own nore contiguous retail space than any ot her owner
in that conmercial corridor. So the redevel oprment of
this project would make a mmjor inpact on that
corridor.

The proposed redevel opmrent would be to a
si x-story structure. W woul d have 28 residenti al
units as opposed to 22. As you can see on the
el evation, there are seven separate retail units. Qur
application showed six, but the last unit has two

entrances because there's one for the ANC of fi ce. And
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t he redevel opnent woul d al so zone t he property fromGC-
2-Ato CG3-A which we'll discuss further later. The
| ot coverage would still be 76 percent. GCbviously the
land area is what it is. The new height would be 65
feet, which is the limt for a PUDin a CG2-A And
t he new FAR would be 3.85, which is well within the
realmof a PUDin a C 3-A zone.

The new addi tions that we're adding to the
devel opnent i nclude -- that are not there now, the new
anenities, | guess you could say are, we're adding a
traction el evator. There hasn't been one there for 70
years and so from an ADA standpoint, not really
conpliant, especially inafour-story building. W're
addi ng a trash chute, which is not there now, a great
conveni ence. W're also adding a green rooftop
terrace to the building, as well as a club roomand an
exercise facility.

| want t o address understandi ng t hat t hese
applications are essentially based on public benefit
or nerit and anenities, | want to discuss the various
categories of project anenities and public benefits
briefly.

Recr eat i onal space. Currently the
bui l di ng has no recreational space. And as such, it

does not neet the recreational space requirenment of 20
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percent and we, through our devel opnent, will actually
exceed the recreational space requirenment as if that
buil ding were built new. And so that's going to be a
real benefit. In addition, we are making this
recreational space green space by devel oping a green
roof and hopefully that will also lend to a better
quality of life for the residents and the comunity.

Far as the land utilization is concerned,
the redevel opnent is certainly denser than what's
there now and froma land utilization standpoint, we
think it's going to be beneficial to have additional
units to help ease the issues of the high cost of
housi ng and t he denands on housi ng i n t he nei ghbor hood
have increased significantly since there are two new
Metro stations that are both a matter of bl ocks from
this project. So it sits square between the two
newest Metro stations in the District that | now of.
And so we are increasing that density in response to
t hat and ot her things.

Transportati on Managenent. Qur current C
of O has no parking spaces whatsoever on the C of O
and we ar e addi ng parki ng spaces commensurate with the
nunber of new units with a one to two ratio. W're
only adding six newunits, so we'll have three parking

spaces for it. The balance of the building is
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grandfathered in with no parking. The retail space
woul d require additional parking if we increase the
intensity of use, the ampunt of square footage, by
nore than 25 percent, which we're not doing.

In addition, | think it's inmportant to
note that the property has four bus stations within
one bl ock and of course those two Metro stations, so
hopefully that mtigate the transportati on nanagenent
si tuation. And we also have a new bicycle rack
install ed and we' ve tal ked with DDOT about installing
two additional racks on that side of the square after
devel opnent is conpl ete.

From a historic preservation standpoint,
t he property does not have a historic designation, but
we certainly have an appreciation for the historic
nature of the building. |It's a beautiful building.
It has great bricks; | have pictures here. You can't
see it, but for a 70-year-old building it's in very
good shape with |inestone coining and keystones and
such. And so what we're doing in order to conpl enent
that i s continuing that |inmestone coining patterninto
both the fifth and the sixth story addition and
continuing the rhythmand the pattern of the w ndows
as it was originally designed and doing this to tie

the old to the new. In addition, the first fl oor
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bricks are probably the bricks that are in the worst
shape because t hey' ve been in reach of human hands for
70 years, so we're going to cover those with precast
stone, which is to be the sane precast stone that
we're adding to the fifth and sixth floors and tying
once again the old to the new, which is indicative of
buil dings that were built in that era. A lot of those
bui | di ngs had the |inestone at the bottomand at the
top and we're attenpting to mmc that such that it
doesn't |l ook |ike we just put sonething new on top of
an hol d buil di ng.

As far as enploynment opportunities are
concerned, Hope 7, Inc. is certainly focused on
provi ding job opportunities and we have in the past
enpl oyed ex-offenders, as well as Veterans and
construction trade and we're |eaning to support any
general contractor who's willing to further those type
of or mrror those type of practices. In addition, as
| said earlier, we are very focused on utilizing LSDBE
firms and we have chosen both an LSDBE architectural
firm which is a great firmdoing wonderful work, as
wel | as an LSDBE construction managenment firm

Affordability is probably the primry
conmponent of what we're doing here. Hope 7 was

awarded this contract through the tenant association
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that was exercising a purchase right and a nmgjor
concern was affordability and the affordability of
this project is stark to say the | east. The average,
we have nine famlies comng back to the project.
When we bought the building, there were 19 famlies
that were there and nine chose to cone back, which
woul d conprise -- 33 percent of the entire project
woul d be given to affordable units. Not only would
t hey be affordable, but they'd be residents who woul d
be returning, sone of whom have been in the building
for as many as 44 years and they woul d be owners of
their properties at an average cost of about $80, 000,
whi ch is absolutely unheard of right now in Col unbia
Hei ghts for a finished two-bedroomunit. And that's
what we're delivering with the sane quality of
anenities, the same granite, the sane hardwood, the
same qual ity throughout as such that you woul d not be
able to tell one building fromthe other. And these
affordable units are not particularly set aside.
Essentially, nost of the tenants are com ng ri ght back
to the same unit that they left. The mpjority, as a
matter of fact the highest concentration of returning
tenants is actually on the fourth floor, which would
normal |y be higher cost units.

So we have stark affordability, returning
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tenants, D.C. residents for decades and decades who
have been there through all the bad tines and they're
going to have an opportunity to share in the success
of the project. It equates to about $2.7 mllion in
| ost revenue to deliver these units at an average of
about 300, 000 bel ow market, conservatively speaking.
Soci al programsupport. W have chosen to
support a programcal |l ed Keel ey's District Boxing and
Youth Center. | don't know if M. Thonpson wll be
here toni ght, but Keel ey Thonpson runs a programt hat
works wi th disadvantaged youth from the Col unbia
Hei ght s nei ghborhood. It is a 501-C 3 not-for-profit
and they work with many Latino, African-Anerican and
Asian youth in the comunity and we have already
contri buted over $10,000 to Keel ey Thonpson Program
In his first year he has three Gol den d oves chanpi ons
wor ki ng al so in partnership with the District police.
So we wll contribute an additional $10,000 to
Keel ey's Program fromthe proceeds of this project.
In the area of environnental relief, as |
nmentioned earlier the | ot occupancy of this property
is 76 percent, which exceeds what would normally be
al | owabl e. And one of the nmjor bases, as |
understand it, for |lot occupancy limtations is the

i ssue of stormwater run-off and what's created, the
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pollution that's created by stormwater run-off. And
one of the ways that you could mtigate that 1is
t hrough green roofs and we are going to engage the
addi ti onal expense of installing a green roof on at
| east 50 percent of the roof area of this building
which would do well to conpensate for the high |ot
coverage, which is sonmet hing that we are grandfat hered
into, but we are still concerned about and so we are
goingtoinstall that green roof which will have those
envi ronnmental benefits as well as energy efficiency
benefits. The D.C. Ofice of Energy is also
supportive of those efforts.

Local government support. The ANC at one
point cane to us early in the devel opnent | ooking for
an office space. They did not have an office space
that was ADA conpliant, handi cap accessi bl e,
af f ordabl e and such and essentially an of fi cel ess ANC,
and |' msure everyone understands the i nportance of an
ANC and how it could function in the conmunity. And
it"'salittle tough for the community to touch an ANC
when they can't go to their office. And so what we
did in our devel opnment plan was incorporate a space
t hat coul d be af f ordabl e, that woul d be ADA conpli ant,
ground | evel accessible for the ANC and a |ong-term

| ease, which has also helped this project to be a
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center of local community effort. So we're excited
about that and hopefully this will be a long-term
benefit for the conmunity through the ANC

The public school support is another area
of local government support. Nearby there is the
Harriet Tubman El enentary School, which is an
el enentary school that has been in Col unbia Heights
for quite sonetinme. It's agreat little school. The
student population is primarily Hi spanic and then
African- Aneri can. Lots of good kids go there,
di sadvantaged kids wunfortunately though, in many
cases, and they're al ways doi ng fundrai sers and drives
to hel p support the school, uniformprogranms and such.
And so we have decided to contribute $100,000 to the
Harriet Tubman El enmentary School as a way of making a
statenent and supporting this comunity. And
recogni zing the service that this school gives to the
comunity, we're adding additional units and it's
possi bl e that people who live in our project may send
their kids to those schools and we feel as an
organi zation that it's inportant that devel opers
support local schools which will essentially support
the children who live in the devel opnent.

Econom c revitalization. That's the |ast

area that | wanted to cover. As | said earlier, we
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own nore contiguous retail space than any ot her owner
in the CG2-A zone as it is and we believe that the
redevel opnent of this space will do a great work in
the way of redefining the 11th Street Corridor. One
of the commtnents that we have is the Waffle Shop
which is a 26-year-old business in Col unbia Heights,
26 years that was recently displaced by the DCUSA
Proj ect, had nowhere to go and who cane to us and have
now conmtted to buy a space that is actually
significantly larger than the one that they had
before, totally renovated, totally new and we're
preserving a D.C. institution in the form of the
VWaffl e Shop that has conmitted to be there.

So we're excited about the economc
revitalization and incorporation of businesses |ike
the Waffl e Shop which are m nority-owned busi nesses,
long-term D.C. institutions that are really feeling
the pinch of the devel opnent. Particularly that's
happeni ng in Col unbia Heights. And they will now be
owners of their space as opposed to renters of their
space, and so they wll not be pushed into the
situation that they were forced into by this other
project. So once again, we're excited about that.

The O fice of Planning's report | won't go

into, but I had previously prepared to address it, but
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we certainly want to thank the O fice of Planning for
directing us to the PUD process; we were actually on
a different road prior to that, and we appreciate
t hat .

But there were a couple of things that |
not ed when | was | ooki ng at sone of the docunentation
fromthe Ofice of Planning that | thought were of
note and in support of this project. In their
i ncl usi onary zoni ng report, they had indi cated that 50
percent or |ess of bonus density in an inclusionary
zoning project should be dedicated to affordable
housing. And | certainly have no contention or bone
to pick with the Ofice of Planning, but | want to
note that inthis project we're delivering 100 percent
of the bonus density to affordabl e housing; actually
nore than 100 percent. So there is absolutely no
benefit. There is absolutely no profit, | should say,
t hat t he devel oper is gaining by delivering the vol une
of bonus density. W are giving back nore than we are
receiving. The net value of the bonus density we're
requesting is approximately $2 mllion. The net cost
of the public benefit package that we're deliveringis
approximately $3 mllion. Soit's actually costing us
nearly a $1 mllion to accept this benefit. But that

is how focused we are and how nuch we believe in the
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i ssue of affordable housing. You know, inclusionary
zoni ng general ly tal ks about bonus density of one-to-
one ratios. Really, it equates to 50 percent of the
bonus density being given back. And by our
definition, one-to-one ratio is a 100 percent
delivery, that there's really no incentive for us
other than that that is why our non-profit was put
together, to be a quality devel opnent corporation that
delivers a quality product, but that doesn't have to
focus on profitability. W can focus on affordability
because that's why we were creat ed.

And since | ate 2002, OP has nmade it clear
to PUD applicants that OP regards provision of
af fordable housing as the single nost inportant
prof fer of public benefit and anenities to acconpany
an application. And so, you know, we hope that what
we've done falls in line with that.

And then | want to talk briefly about the
Conpr ehensive Plan, how we feel it supports our
proj ect under Chapter 1 of the General Provisions
el enent. Under the Section that's titled, "Providing
for Diversity and Overal | Social Responsibilities," it
says, "Each distinct nei ghborhood of the District is
an integral part of a diverse larger comunity that

contributes to the District's attractiveness and
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strength.” And we certainly believe that, that we are
approaching and addressing a diverse group. And
interestingly enough, we'll probably have people in
our buil di ng who bought for $80, 000 and t hen people in
our building who bought for $800, 000. And t hat
certainly is diversity, if I've ever -- economnically,
if 1've ever heard of it. And they will be living,
co-existing and all will get a great benefit. And |
think it preserves the diversity that the Conp Pl an
was tal king about. And once again, Chapter 3 of the
Housi ng El enment says, "It is the goal of the District
to have adequate affordable housing for all District
residents and conmunities to have access to services
and facilities to nmeet their needs." Once again,
we're dealing with the whol e spectrum the whol e ganut
and we are revitalizing services and facilities in the
way of our conmercial space that will help neet the
needs of the overall comrunity.

And one other quote from the Conp Pl an
under Chapter 3 says, "The general objectives for
housing are to stinulate production of new and

rehabilitated housing to neet all,"” and once again |'m
stressing the all, "levels of need and demand and to
provi de incentives for the types of housing needed at

desired |l ocations.” W are proud of the fact that the
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type of housing that we're delivering as affordable is
not sinply efficiencies and one-bedroons. As a natter
of fact, they're all pretty | arge one-bedroons and t he
maj ority are t wo- bedroom uni ts.

Okay. Pretty | arge one-bedroons; we have
a projector, and two-bedroomunits. So we're excited
about the fact that we are providing housing that can
actually support famlies. W even have two three-
bedroomunits in our project. Unfortunately they're
not the affordable units because they're on the top
fl oor, and those are the revenues that we're using to
offset the other funds we're losing, but we are
providing a mx of units that can support famlies,
larger famlies in the District.

The other thing that we think that is of
note here inline with the price and affordability is
t hat t he proposed i ncone ranges for nost projects that
deliver affordability are between 50 and 80 percent of
the area nedian incone. Wile nost participants in
conversations, if you get together a think tank, they
feel that the average of the ranges shoul d be between
65 and 70 percent. \What alarns ne personally is that
there is essentially no discussion of people who earn
| ess than 50 percent of the AM. So we're talking

about people who earn |less than $45,000 a year, and
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there are a lot of really good people, really good
District residents who have no option, who have no
answer in finding a hone when they earn below 50
percent of the area nmedian incone. It's a real

probl emand there are not a | ot of nechanisns for them
to deal with. And even things that are designed to be
i nclusionary exclude these individuals who earn
$45,000 and less, which are people who nake rea

contributions to the District. And so we're proud of
the fact that all of the affordable units in our
project, every last affordable unit in our project is
af fordabl e to peopl e who earn | ess than 50 percent of
AM, which is a group that is generally not addressed.
And so we ask that the Comm ssion also take note of
t hat .

And this is the |ast Conprehensive Plan
citing that | have here. [It's under Chapter 3 of the
Housi ng El enment, another way | think the Conp Plan
supports specifically this project. It's "Low and
Moder at e- I ncone Housing," Section 303.2(d). "The
policies established in support of |ow and noder at e-
i ncome housing objectives are as follows: Provide
zoning incentives as appropriate to devel opers
prepared to build | owand noderat e-i ncone housi ng such

as permtting additional densities in exchange for
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incorporating |ow and noderate-incone housing in
devel opnent projects and give zoning preferences to
m xed- use sites that include housing near appropriate
Metrorail stations.”

And when the Conp Plan was put in place,
or the map was put in place, the Colunbia Heights
Metro wasn't there, the Georgia Avenue Metro wasn't
t here and both of those Metros are there now and t hey
are increasing the value and the demand to |ive there.
Her e we have ni xed-use site. Unless there's sonething
i nappropri ate about those Metrorail stations, we feel
that this particular section is applicable.

W are a devel oper prepared to devel op | ow
and noderate-income housing in a mxed-use site near
a Metrorail station and we hope that based on that
that that's a plus for us.

And then comrmunity support. | knowit's
very i nportant, being a fornmer Conm ssioner nyself, to
garner conmunity support. W have gone before
Advi sory Nei ghbor hood Commi ssion 1-A on two occasi ons
and on both of those occasions they have unani nously
supported our project, both in July and on the past
Novemnber . Also entered into the record we have a
letter of support from Council Menber Jim G aham

Council Menber Marion Barry, Council Menber Kwam
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Brown, Council| Menber Kathy Patterson, Council Menber

Linda Cropp, Council Menber Adrian Fenty, Council
Menber David Catania, Council Menber Vincent O ange.
W have enough Council Menbers for a fornmative counci
vote in support of what we're doing.

Also, I'mparticularly proud of the fact
that we have garnered support from Deputy Mayor for
Econom ¢ Devel opnent Stan Jackson, a real hero of
m ne, but who has supported this project and what we
are attenpting to do. Obviously, we've got support
from Harriet Tubman El enmentary School and Keeley's
Boxing Program And there's also a letter in there
from the Thonmason fanmily who live on the corner of
11t h and Monroe adj acent to the buil di ng who have been
owners of that property since 1966 and M. Thomason,
who is an elderly gentleman, took his tine and
handwote a | etter of support and we think that that's
a powerful statenent of community support as well.

And | ast, but not |east, the 1020 Monroe
Street 2003 Tenant's Association has submitted a
| etter of support. These are the people who have
lived in the building for decades, who are real
st akehol ders. The Bibb fam |y has been there for 44,
going on 45 years. You know, Ms. Bibbs is 96 years

old; her son is 63, and they are still there, still
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st akehol ders and they are going to be finally owners
of their property. They' ve probably paid for their
property two or three tinmes at | east, payi ng rent that
long. But we're excited about being able to deliver
a wn for themas we conplete our project.

And in closing, as far as this part of ny
presentation, the ultimate goal of zoning -- this is
a quote from Roger Lewis, professor at University of
Maryl and and a Washi ngt on Post col umi st, that | think
is appropriate, "The ultimte goal of zoning is to
insure that the interests of the public are duly
served and protected. Across-the-board inposition and
enforcenment of uniform zoning regulations wth
specific quantitative limts may not al ways be in the
best interest of the public and the city."

W ask that the Comm ssion approve this
application in the best interest of the public. W
understand that we're asking for a rezoning of the
property fromGC-2-Ato C3-A, but we're not looking to
maxi m ze on that. W're just attenpting to deliver
what we originally conceived within the limts or
within the confines of the regul ations. In every
respect we conformto a C-2-A other than area of FAR,
but density | think is nmerited here, particularly with

the two Metro stations.
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So | don't know how nuch ti ne has el apsed,
but | definitely want to have tinme for questions that
can be addressed, if there are any, or presentations.

Oh, okay. | apol ogi ze. That's the
concl usi on of the presentation.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. Ckay. Did you want
the architect to say anything, or just have us ask
guestions?

MR. HALL: He can wal k through them

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. Ckay. | nmean, your
presentation -- you have like 28 mnutes |left.

MR. HALL: Really?

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Yes.

MR. HALL: Yes, why don't we do that?

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  You're not required
to take 28 minutes. Wanted to |let you know you had
t hem

M5. G ORDANO W can let the Conm ssion
deci de whet her you want to hear fromthe architect.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: What do you t hink?

No, | have some specific questions to ask,
but other than that | think the drawings are pretty
strai ght f orward.

Ckay. And | guess we're ready for

guestions. You want to go first, M. Hood?
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VICE-CHAIR HOOD:  Yes, I'Il go first.

| probably shouldn't ask this question,
Madam Chair, since you said the drawi ngs were pretty
straightforward, but I'mtrying to get nmy orientation,
M. Hall, straight. You said it's on the southeast
corner of 11th Street. What's on the sout hwest corner
of 11th Street? Isn't it another building? ' m
trying to visually picture where this building is.

MR HALL: Yes, Conm ssioner, on the
sout hwest corner is the Thonason famly's hone.

VI CE- CHAI R HOOD: kay. Now on the
nort heast corner is a church, right?

MR HALL: No, on the northeast corner is
t he i nfanous pink house.

VI CE- CHAI R HOOD: Ckay. So that neans on
the -- I"'mjust trying to get ny bearings. Oh, so
t hat means on the northwest corner, it's |like an open
space, a little area --

MR. HALL: There's a park, yes, sir.

VI CE-CHAIR HOOD: | know where you are.
| know exactly where you are. The church on the
northeast side is a little further down.

MR HALL: One bl ock.

VI CE- CHAIR HOOD: | know where you are.

You nmentioned in your testinony that 30
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percent of the AM has not been discussed. I will
tell you it has. And | was happy to see a project
wi th 30 percent, because when we were dealing with the
i ncl usi onary zoni ng piece, | heard that that coul dn't
be done. And now here the first case that | have; and
| don't know, | don't want to get in trouble here,
because we haven't finished that, but then again it
doesn't matter, but I'mglad here now to see that we
get the 30 percent.

My question is, you're saying between 30
and 50. How do we make sure that we include sone of
those folks who are at the 30 percent threshold,
exactly 30

MR HALL: Wll, the families that are
com ng back, they have purchase options at -- if they
have a one-bedroom their purchase option specifically
are at $77,500. |If they are in a two-bedroom their
pur chase opti on says specifically they are at $83, 500.
And that is 30.

VI CE- CHAI R HOOD: Ckay. So that's how we
make sure that we include themand they don't | ose out
to people -- I'm actually using this as a |earning
| esson for me, so ot her peopl e who cone out behind you
will probably hear nme say, "Well, this has been done

previously."” And so you're educating nme on this piece
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and how it's done.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. On that point, just
so that we're conpl et ed educat ed, what ot her prograns
or, you know, |owinterest |oans or whatever are you
avai ling yourself of to be able to do this? Anything?
Are there any other supports that you re taking
advantage of in order to deliver this level of
affordability?

MR. HALL: Well, actually the average, |'m
using an average of $80,000 is actually still a bit
high for themto afford. The average rent when we
acquired the building was only $500 a nonth. And so
our goal was to try to get the tenants within 20
percent of that. And froma standpoint of cash flow,
even at $83,500, it's still not within that range. So
what we are doing is working with the Urban League and
t he programcal | ed HPAP, whi ch was very commonly used
but now has trouble because of the prices being so
hi gh. The HPAP program will actually give them
ef fective costs of actually | ess than $80,000 with a
20 to 30 percent -- on a $20,000 to $30, 000 HPAP | oan,
they'd only be paying a nortgage on approximtely
$50, 000. So we are engagi ng that programand they are
very excited about working with us because they don't

have as nmany people going through the program these
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days and the Urban League is right around the corner.
So that's one of the main things that we're using to
deliver affordability. But there are no other grants
or subsidies to the project.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: kay. One of the
things that -- in the whole inclusionary zoning
di scussion is the opportunity to sort of dovetail
ot her programs Wwth the inclusionary zoning
requi renents, just to M. Hood' s point about being
educated. | just wanted to understand it conpletely.

Sorry. Keep going.

VI CE- CHAI R HOOD: (kay. Let nme ask you,
| know parking predates, but let me ask you, is the
area surrounding that area, is it zoned parking, like
Zone, what isit, 1? Is it nore than one? Is it Zone

1 par ki ng i n t hat area?

MR HALL: Zone 17

VI CE- CHAI R HOCD: One, which would limt
it to two hours.

MR HALL: Yes, it is.

VICE-CHAIR HOCOD: So that whole area is
Zone 1 parking? Okay.

MR HALL: Yes, Conmi ssioner.

VI CE- CHAI R HOQOD: The only other thing
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that | had, M. Hall, | woul d encourage you, and | was
| ooking at your package to the Harriet Tubnman
El ementary School and it says, at |least the way | see

it, it says $100,000 for the project sales to capital

i mprovenent. | think we just need to be a little bit
nore -- | nean, a little nore specific exactly what
it"'s going to. |It's going to this, or it's going to

that. And |I'msure that nmay be addressed | ater on.

MR. HALL: Yes. I believe a
representative from the Harriet Tubnman Elenentary
School is here, as well as from their PTA We're
actually working directly with the PTA. There was a
concern about how the funds would be distributed and
if they'd get kind of lost in the --

VI CE- CHAI R HOOQD: General fund or
what ever .

MR. HALL: -- in the general fund. And so
what we're attenpting to do is work with the PTA. W
have the PTA head here, as well as the principal of
the school and | think they'Il be able to el aborate on
how they intend to use it. W haven't put any rea
restraints on how they use it. W just know that
t hese are honest people who are trying to help fund
t he education of their children.

VI CE- CHAI R HOQOD: The next question, |
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remenber you as an ANC Conmi ssioner com ng down to
testify in front of the Commi ssion. Have you had any
projects before us, or is this your first one?

MR. HALL: This is the first project, the
flagship of ny affordable housing devel opnent
corporation. And | tried to put sonething together
that | would have liked to support when | was a
Commi ssi on chai r man

VI CE- CHAI R HOQOD: That's a good way to
| ook at it. Thank you.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: M. Turnbul | ?

COWMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: Yes, | just got a
guestion on the architectural finishes onthe top two
floors. | guess on the north and west el evations you
clearly call out that they're going to be precast. |
guess that the panel and the coins are precast? On
the south and west side they're vinyl plaster?

MR NESM TH: No, sir. It should be
portions of the south side are going to also be
precast. At the back side, on the east side of the
bui l di ng --

COWM SSI ONER TURNBULL: East side?

MR NESMTH. -- the east side would be

Efis. That's what we're planning on doing.
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COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Ckay. So it's a

vinyl plaster on the east side?

MR NESM TH:  Yes, sir

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Are you turning
the corner at all with precast, or how do you nmake t he
transition fromthe precast to the other finish?

MR. NESM TH. The precast --

COWM SSI ONER TURNBULL: At the coins?

MR NESM TH. Yes, sir. Yes, sir. And
basically in the corners where t he staircase comes up.
At that point it will die there and then begin, or the
transi ti on woul d happen at that poi nt and becone Efi s.

COWMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: And then are you
scoring that to sort of |ook Iike precast stone?

MR NESM TH:  Yes, sir

COWM SSI ONER TURNBULL:  Ckay.

MR NESM TH. Yes, we're scoring it in a
simlar vein as the precast on the front.

COWM SSI ONER TURNBULL:  Ckay. M only
ot her question | guess was when | heard on the -- and
| just want to clarify that, when you' re renovating
and we're doing the el evator upgrade --

MR NESM TH: Yes, sir

COWM SSI ONER TURNBULL: -- it will be ADA

conpliant?
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MR NESM TH  Yes, sir

COWM SSI ONER TURNBULL:  Ckay.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. Could | ask you to
state your nanme for the record?

MR NESM TH: Canetrick Nesmth of PGN
Architects.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:.  Thank you.

COWM SSI ONER TURNBULL:  Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. Okay. | had a few
things to ask about. Wat is the rear yard use for
now? You talked about a series of existing
condi tions, but the area where t he parki ng spaces wil |
be, what's that area used for now? | need you to turn
you m ke back on.

MR. HALL: At the tine that we acquired
the property, when it was occupi ed, generally people
par ked back there.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Yes.

MR, HALL: But what they did was they
parked 1'd say about 70-80 percent on our |ot and
about 20 percent on the adjacent |ot.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Yes.

MR HALL: And so when we becane confined
by the lot Ilines in designing our parking, it

significantly reduced the nunber of 1|egal parking
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spaces that we coul d present. But generally you would
see seven or eight cars parked back there on a regul ar
basi s.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: One of the things
that is a required subm ssion for the planned unit
devel opnent is a detailed circulation plan that wll
show us how you're going to be treating that lot line
so that people don't go over it and so that your
par ki ng spaces are clearly delineated and show how you

woul d access fromthe alley. And then to the extent

that there's a curb cut to Monroe Street; | don't know
if there is a curb cut to Monroe Street. So that's
all going to need to be shown an additional

submi ssi on

| notice on your site plan that you have
desi gnat ed one of the parking spaces will also be a
| oadi ng space, do intend that there will be unl oadi ng
or nove-in/nove-out by tenants through that | oading
space, or where will people nove in and nove out?

MR. HALL: My intentionis for the nove-in
and nove-out to happen through the nmain entrance,
because we only have one elevator and the
accessibility on the ground level from any other
entrance. The other fire exit is not really good for

nmoving in and noving and it and it lets out into a
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public alley as opposed to a sidewal k.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Ckay.

MR, HALL: And the first part of your
guestion was really -- I"'msorry, | forgot.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: It was j ust how woul d
residents get access to the elevator and so on from
the | oading. Do you just intend the | oadi ng conponent
to be for retail tenants?

MR HALL: Canetrick?

MR. NESM TH.  Yes, nmm'am

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: | need you to turn
t he m ke back on.

MR. NESM TH: Yes, nm'am The | oadi ng
conmponent, or the l|oading designation that you see
there is intended primarily for commercial use.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. Ckay. And then how
are you going to handle the trash?

MR HALL: Well, as | said earlier, we do
have a trash chute. Believe it or not, we had trash
going out of w ndows when we bought the property
because it's a pretty long four-story walk, four
flights to walk. Then they walk all the way around
t he buil di ng.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Yes.

MR, HALL: So we have kept sone of the
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space on the first floor and instead of using it as
retail, we've dedicated a trash roomand we're goi ng
to install a trash conpactor which should help us to
manage the trash significantly better. W had a
dunpster that was out back before that was kind of
bei ng used by the public in general. So, our goal is
to try to confine the trash managenent wthin the
structure of the trash room and conpact or.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Ckay.

COWMM SSI ONER TURNBULL.: | just had one
ot her question. |Is there then, in the front of the
buil ding on the north side by the front entrance, is
there parking spaces or is there a designated no
par ki ng area or anything there now?

MR. HALL: Not to ny know edge, sir.

COWMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: I'mj ust thinking
of | oadi ng and unl oadi ng.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Vell, 1 think what
typically happens is if there's just regular
residential parking, if sonebody's going to nove in
t hey have to go to the police departnment and get sone
signs to bl ock the space.

Just to an earlier question that M.
Turnbul | asked you about the materials on the upper

fl oors, do you have material sanples for us?
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MR. HALL: No, we do not tonight.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:. Ckay. That's going
to need to be an additional subm ssion so we can see
exactly what materials and colors of those materials
you intend to use.

You spoke to us about your use of LSDBE
contractors in terns of the contractor end and your
architect and so on. Did the Ofice of Planning
di scuss with you at all -- we try and encourage fol ks
particularly ones that are sensitive like you are to
using District residents on the construction work on
using local businesses to enter into -- there's a
first source agreement wth the Departnent of
Enpl oynment Services and then there's an MOU with the
Local Business Qpportunity Conmi ssion. Didthey talk
to you about that at all? Are you aware of those?

MR, HALL: | am sonewhat aware of them
fromm prior work as a Comn ssi oner.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Yes.

MR HALL: But we didn't discuss it
specifically with OP. This was essentially sonething
that we -- and it's not a proffer of the project. It
was sonet hing that we just chose to do.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Yes.

MR HALL: And | was noting it for the
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record.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. Ckay. Well, we would
j ust encourage you, if you wanted to enter into those
agreenents, that would be all to the good.

MR. HALL: Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: To the affordable
housi ng anenity, in PUDs where we accept a proffer
like that as an anenity,t here's an nechanism to
ensure affordability. So we tal ked about the |evels
that you're targeting and anong the things is
typically there's an agreenment with -- | don't know
who the agreenent is with, the Departnent of Housing
and Community Devel opment or -- we sort of have a
nodel for what's used. And typically there's a
commitment nade to a period of affordability. | don't
know i f that's sonething that you have di scussed with
the returning tenants about whether it will just be
af fordable to them and then they can turn around and
sell it to soneone else, or if there will be a period
of affordability.

And then one of the things we |ike to see
also; and | think this would be sonething fairly
straightforward for you to do, is to show us which
units in the building will be the affordable units.

So | asked you a couple of different
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t hi ngs there.
MR HALL: Yes, I'mwth you. As far as

t he nmechani smof affordability, just so you know, our

formula, 1'Il say, is that we |ooked at what | cal
functional affordability. And so we took the
conmbi nation of principal, interest, taxes, insurance

and condom ni umfees because those are all the things
t hat these residents will have to --

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: You're mssing ny
point. |I'msorry. | didn't express nyself correctly.

There's an agreenent sort of wth an
outside party. You don't just represent to us that
this is your intent, but there's sonething tangible
that we can point to that says they not only said it,
but we know it w Il happen because there's this other
agr eement .

MR. HALL: Ckay.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:. Do you have such an
agr eenent ?

MR HALL: Yes, Conmm ssioner, in two
forms. Wien we won the RFP, the tenant association
was represented by Reed Smith Law Firm

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Yes.

MR. HALL: Specifically divia Shay-Byrne

and Phil Fick.
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CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Yes.

MR, HALL: And they negotiated the
agreenent between Hope 7, Inc. and the tenants. And
these prizes were part of the agreement with the
tenant association so the tenant's affordability is
protected by that particular nechanism that is an
agreenent that was in place over a year ago.

In addition to that, we also distributed
to those tenant association nmenbers a notarized
docurnent essentially giving themthis affordability,
this option, this purchase option at that price.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Can you share with us
t he docunentation that you're referring to so that we
woul d have that third-party docunment in the record?

MR HALL: Yes. Yes.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. Ckay. And then can
you provide us just the floor plan show ng us whi ch of
the units on which floors will be the affordable
uni ts?

MR HALL: Yes, Conmi ssioner.

CHAIl RPERSON M TTEN. Ckay. | want to be
sure that | understand the proffer because there's
some | anguage that's been used and | don't know how
narrowmy to interpret the |language. But the retai

space in the building has been represented that it

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 (202) 234-4433




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

44

wi || be for nei ghborhood-serving retail uses. And to
t he Zoni ng Conmi ssion that neans sonething narrower
than the full range of potential uses that are
permtted in the comrercial zones, that are also
permtted in the CG2-A and the C 3-A zones.

Are you intending to in any way restrict
the uses of the first floor to a nore narrow subset of
uses that one would consider to be neighborhood-
serving retail?

MR. HALL: Yes, Conm ssioner. The primary
characterization of the type of businesses that we
targeted was non-chain nei ghborhood-serving retail
est abl i shment s.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Yes.

MR. HALL: W obviously gave the exanple
of the Waffle Shop. Anot her exanple of a concept
paper that's been submtted to us was fromAnn Cashi on
of Cashion's Eat Place. A great concept that she had
for atacoria and a fruiteria, sonething that creates
a destination. W were looking for retail
desti nati ons. She owns Cashion's Eat Place and is
very acconplished as a restauranteur. Her partner of
20 years John Fulchino submitted a concept for an
organi ¢ butcher shop and wi nery. Once again, anot her

unique locally-owned non-chain destination-type
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business is what we were looking for. So those are
the type of businesses that we've pursued.

I don't know if there's anything
specifically in our proffer, but we were just noting
that that was the type of business that we pursued.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Ckay. So what |'m
trying encourage you to do is to the extent that you
intend that to be counted as a proffer, you' re going
to need to tell us what this nore narrow | anguage
that these nore narrow substantive businesses that
you're going to be targeting are, otherwise if it's
not constrained in any way, it's only an expressi on of
what you intend. It is not going to be considered a
proffer. Ckay.

MR, HALL: Okay. Well then in light of
that then, just for functional purposes |I would say
that the only part that | could say is a proffer,
because we have an actual agreenent, is that we wll
bring the Waffl e Shop, which is a mnority-owned D. C
institution. W've already signed it. | have a
bi ndi ng agreenent that they woul d be attendant there.
And the rest of it I will say is an intention, but
certainly one we intend to follow through wth.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. Okay. Then to the

di scussion that M. Hood began with you about the
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donation to Harriet Tubman El enentary School, there
are a couple of things I wanted to talk to you about,
and you' Il have to come back to us and gi ve us a sense
of timng. There's typically two points at which a
donation of that kind is required to be made. One is
at the time that you get a building permt, or prior
to the time you pull the permit. The other is prior
to receipt of the certificate of occupancy. And |
know t hat you had said you wanted to pay the proffer
out of the proceeds of sale. But we need a point at
which there's still a gate or, you know, a hurdle for
you to go over that you have to nake the donation and
t hen you get, you know, the final certificate. So you
need to tell us when you intend to nake actually both
of the nonetary contributions.

And then we really do encourage that
abstract contributions of any size are not just given.
And | know you' ve already expressed a sensitivity to
this, but I'd encourage youto work with the school so
that you could conme back to us and say that the
contribution would be used for sonething specific. It
doesn't have to be one thing, but the ideais that the
comunity can see that you got what you want ed and t he
buildingis full and here's the material manifestation

of that contribution, not that well, we'll still

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 (202) 234-4433




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

47

deciding what it's going to be wused for.
So we really do encourage that.

And then as to the agreenent with the ANC
regardi ng office space, again, if you intend that to
be a proffer, then you' re going to have to give us a
little bit nore specificity about what is the
arrangenment going to be. Because right now saying
it's affordable is, you know, one person's
affordability is another person's overpriced office
space. So, you know, it's arelative term | guess is
all I'"'mtrying to say.

And | think those are all ny questions.

Anybody el se have any fol |l ow up?

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Ckay. VW' ll run
t hrough t he addi ti onal subm ssions that you'll have to
nmake at the very end. Ckay?

MR. HALL: GCkay. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Ckay. s there
someone here from the ANC? You are given the
opportunity to cross exanmne the Applicant, if you
woul d Iike. Do you want to ask any questions?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Ckay. Thank you.
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Now, we're ready for the Ofice of
Pl anning report. M. Parker?

MR. PARKER: Good eveni ng, Madam Chai r and
Menbers of the Conm ssion. |'mTravis Parker with the
O fice of Planning.

As you renenber, this application was
post poned fromthe original to anend it to change the
map to C-3-A on this property. And as such, "1l
[imt my remarks to that zoning change, unless there
are specific questions about other parts of the
appl i cation.

OP exanmined the change to C3-A from
several angl es. W | ooked at the zoning. Thi s
property is in a conmercial area of C-2-A zoning. It
is nore inportantly m dway between the Georgi a Avenue
and 14th Avenue corridors, which does contain |arge
strips of G3-A zoning. And we decided that this was
significant both because there is C3-A in the
vicinity of the project and because this is a m dpoint
t hat provi des an opportunity for a conmerci al node for
nei ghbor hood-serving retail as the project intends to
provi de.

W | ooked at the project in terns of
density. The density being requested is greater than

the C-2-A zone permits, as was the original problem
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but it is significantly less than could be achieved
under a standard C-3-A project. So it is nore
appropriate scal e to t he surroundi ng nei ghbor hood t han
woul d be achi eved on either the Georgi a Avenue or 14th
Avenue corridors, either through a PUD, or even as a
matter of right in the C 3-A zone.

Thirdly, we | ooked at the project interns
of the Conprehensive Plan. And one of our statenents
in our previous submssion was that it was not
directly consistent with the I and use map. W think
that's sonewhat aneliorated by the nedium density
that's being requested, and not the full density of
the CG2-A But also there are specific elenents of
the Conp Plan that support the project as it's being
proposed. Specifically raised in ny report are the
housi ng el ement, Section 300.2; the | and use el enent,
1102.1; and the Ward One el enent, 1205.1. Al raise
speci fic support as quoted in nmy report for a project
of this nature that revitalizes the existing housing
stock that provides neighborhood-serving retail in
this area.

Finally and nost significantly, we | ooked
at the anenities of this project and we believe this
is where the project rises to an exceptional nerit

that has | ed us to recommend approval of the project.
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First and nost inportantly this project,
as you' ve noted, has 30 percent affordabl e housing at
rates around 30 to 50 percent AM. This is sonething,
as M. Hood noted, that we really haven't seen and is
|argely unprecedented in a private devel opnent.
Moreover it offers this opportunity to the existing
residents, which is also an extrenely valuable
benefit. W consider this to be the project's nost
val uabl e anenity.

I n addi ti on, you have the contributions to
t he nei ghbor hood school, the Keeley's District Boxing
Youth Center. W support the green technol ogi es and
t he nei ghborhood retail, including the ANC office
space is a significant anenity as far as we're
concer ned.

So in light of the exceptional nerit of
the case, the strong nei ghborhood support for the
case, the revitalization that we believe will conme
about as a result of the rehabilitation of this
bui | di ng and the strengt hening of this econom ¢ node,
we reconmend approval of the project. And I'll be
happy to answer any questions.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Thank you. Questi ons
for the Ofice of Planning? Any questions?

(No audi bl e response.)
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CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Did you have any

guestions?

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Did you have any
guestions for the Ofice of Planning?

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. Ckay. Geat. Thank
you.

s there anyone representing another
Gover nment agency that's here?

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. Ckay. Then | would
just reiterate, M. Hall had nentioned that there's a
letter fromthe Deputy Mayor of Pl anni ng and Econom ¢
Devel opnent, letters fromvari ous Council Menbers, and
we also have a nenorandum from the Departnent of
Transportation inthe record at Exhi bit 18 sayi ng t hat
there would be negligible inpact on traffic and
par ki ng fromthe project.

VI CE- CHAI R HOOD: Madam Chair, he also
nmentioned that we had a letter from Council Menber
Barry and | think he nenti oned anot her Council| Menber.
| don't renenber seeing those two. | renenber seeing
all the others, but | didn't see Council Menber Barry

and | think there was another Council Menber you
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nmentioned. |'mnot sure. Council Menber G aham |
didn't see that and | --

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: We have Counci
Menber Barry at Exhibit 30.

MRS. SCHELLI N: It think Gahams was
subnmitted sone tinme ago.

VI CE- CHAI R HOOD: (Okay. Gkay. So we do
have -- okay. Al right. It was in the previous
package. Ckay.

MRS. SCHELLIN:. WMarion Barry was Exhibit
30.

VI CE- CHAI R HOOD: That was i n the previous
package.

MRS. SCHELLI N Yes.

VI CE- CHAI R HOOD: kay. | should have
kept ny nmouth shut. Ckay.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: |'m sure it's not
that you didn't read it carefully.

Okay. Nowwe're ready for the ANC report.

MR MJUHAMVAD: Madam Conmi ssi oner and
Menbers of the Commi ssion, ny name is Ai Mihammad.
|"'mthe chair of ANC 1-A. And at the tine that you
recei ved our recomendati on or resolutions, | was the
vi ce-chair of the ANC

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Vel | t hen
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congratul ati ons.

MR. MUHAMVAD: Thank you very much

There are three conponents that the ANC
| ooked at when we passed our resol ution in support of
this particular project. There's been nuch tal k about
affordability in that particul ar nei ghborhood and we
| ooked at the fact that nine famly nenbers were
returning to this particular building and at such a
cost that was for us astoundi ng, because the prices of
homes in that particular area now have, well, far
exceeded the average AM that this city can even
sustain. So we |ooked at that substantially and we
agree that that was a very inportant part of this
proj ect .

The other part of that we |ooked at was
the weconomic revitalization of this particular
building in terns of retail comng back to the
community. As was noted by the Ofice of Planning
there, it sits central to 14th Street-Georgi a Avenue.
Ceorgia Avenue is now being revitalized by the G eat
Streets Project; 14th Street with the USA project.
And so it left an enpty spot for that particular
corridor in ternms of retail devel opnent. Thi s
particul ar project came along and said | ook, we have

an opportunity here for economc revitalization for
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your nei ghborhood and at such a cost, again, that the
ANC agai n agreed that this was an i nportant piece for
our nei ghbor hood.

The ot her part was t he soci al
partici pation. Since comng to this particular
nei ghbor hood, Hope 7 has extended its hand, so to
speak, in terns of its wllingness to be a good
nei ghbor. The ANCs generally | ook to projects of this
nature or any other project that's comng into the
nei ghborhood to see if that particular project
exenplifies itself as a good nei ghbor sa they will now
beconme a part of the ANC. And from day one, Hope 7
has shown that they are a good nei ghbor. They' ve
contributed wth their contribution to Tubman
El ementary School. Tubman El enentary School is the
current nmeeting place for the ANC. [It's in need of
Some repairs. W find that this contribution wll
al l ow Tubman to use those contributions for some of
t hose stated i nprovenents. So we found that to be an
absol ute pl us.

The donations to Keeley's Boxing Gym
Keel ey' s Boxi ng Gymi s an organi zation t hat represents
or assists youth in the community, not only in the
physi cal aspect of their program but the academ c

conmponent. Many of the kids there are tutored. Their
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gr ades have been i nproved by t he di scipline that cones
with training. They're being tutored, as | said, and
so their grades have also inproved in their acadenic
standing in the program That agai n we t hought we saw
as a very inportant piece to the project's
relationship in the conmmunity. That's about it.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Ckay. Thank you.

MR MUHAMVAD: You're wel cone.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Any questions for
Comm ssi oner Muhammad from t he Zoni ng Conmi ssi on?

M R . P AR K ER

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:.  Any questions?

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Ckay. Thank you.

MR MUHAMVAD: You're wel cone.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Ckay. Then we're
ready to nove to organi zati ons and persons i n support.
And 1'mgoing to assunme on ny witness list, Ms. Gace
and M. Jones, were they just part of your
presentation? Are they going to testify separately?

MR HALL: | believe that Ms. Gace is
going to testify on behalf of the tenant associ ation.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Ch, okay.

MR. HALL: She's actually the president of
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t he tenant association.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. Ch, okay. Maybe |
could have you all sit back and then there would be
nore roomat the table for folks.

Ms. Grace? Wanda Sherrod? | know |' mnot
going to get this exactly right. Jobita Zanora? You
can cone forward. Have a seat. Benita Zanora? W'|
just start with four.

Everybody turn in their cards? She |ikes
t hose at the begi nning so she knows who you are.

Ms. Grace, why don't you go first, unless
you' d rat her not.

MS. GRACE: |'ve never had a problem
t al ki ng.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. Ckay. Good.

M5. GRACE: My nane is Thaia Gace. |I'm
t he president of the 1021 Monroe Street 2003 Tenant's
Association. And | didn't really prepare anything; |
don't know if you all have any questions, but what |
would like to say is that | personally have lived
there for 19 years and so |'ve seen it go fromwhat it
was to what it is. Now that Hope 7 has cone, it's a
big light, a beacon, you know, it is hope.

And in ternms of what M. Hall and t he Hope

7 organi zati on has proposed to do for us and actual ly
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have shown us from the very beginning is really
phenonenal. Wwen |I first noved there in '86, we had
a resi dent nanager and he was so clean that you could
eat off the floor in the back; so that's how pristine
he tried to keep it, down to maybe two years ago when
you probably coul d have caught ptonmai ne poi son just by
wal ki ng through at the tine.

But I'm just saying that it is a good
program | see the benefit to the community, | see
t he benefit that's come to us and | didn't think that
| woul d have the opportunity to see under $100, 000 and
be a honeowner and see the multi-cultural and the old
peopl e and young fol ks and just a whol e m x of people,
even ot her Africans from you know, across the country
and that sort of thing. So, I'mvery happy. |I'min
full support. [I'mthe first cheerleader. | amthe
presi dent of the tenant's association and where we are
is where we are and we're going to go far and | pray
that you all submt an astounding yes in the zoning.
Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Ckay. Thank you.
W' re going to go through the panel and then we'll ask
guestions, if we have any.

Ms. Sherrod?

MS. SHERROD: Yes, Madam Chai rman and t he
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rest of the Zoni ng Conm ssion here. M nane i s Wanda
Sherr od. I am the construction manager for the
proj ect . | have been working in construction
managenent and proj ect managenent for several years.
| have worked with | arge devel opers in the District on
many | arge projects in residential and in comrercial .

| was drawn to Hope 7 and this project
because it offered so nany benefits to not only the
community, but also to true affordabl e housing. I
have wor ked on projects where affordabl e housi ng was
really ternmed work class or work force housi ng, where
a one-bedroomor an efficiency tends to be $200, 000,
$300, 000. And | know several people, including sone
of my col | eagues, who woul d not even consider that to
be affordable. And | was really inpressed with the
way they were putting the project together. And even
t hough | had several offers from other devel opers, |
was just truly inpressed with this devel oper and what
he's really working to do. And | just wanted to
support him so | came on board as part of the team
and |I've really enjoyed it and | think it's going to
be a great project. And I'min the Zoning Ofice all
the time and | think it's going to be a great project.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Ckay. Thank you.

MS5. SHERROD: Thank you.
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CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: 1" Il | et which of you

decide who wants to go first. Dd you want to
testify? Did you want to say sonething?
(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: No? GOkay. W won't

nmake you

Any questions for the panel ?

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: |"m just curious,
where will go during the construction?

M5. GRACE: Thank you, Mdam Chair.
Actually the building is enpty.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN.  Yes, okay.

M5. GRACE: Yes, the building is enpty now
and we are all close by. A few of us, one or two of
us. Sonebody's in Virginia and we have fol ks out in
District Heights. But | nyself, | live a mle away,
which is at 3rd and New Hanpshire. And the two
sisters here, they live pretty close. Still in the
210- 211 zi p code.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Yes.

MS. GRACE: 1st Street and Sherman Avenue.
And sone of our other residents actually that are here
are down on 11th Street, like three of them So we

have been fortunate enough to find a place that is
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still close, keeps us in the neighborhood, keeps us
connected. You know, fol ks cone by, see what's going
on, you know, keep us punped up because we are -- you
know, we're ready to go and we' re supporting M. Hal
and, you know, seeing everyt hing.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Yes.

M5. GRACE: So that's where we are. W
al | have temporary dwel lings

at this tinme.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Ckay. GCkay. G eat.

Thank you all very nuch

COW SSI ONER  TURNBULL: | wonder if |
could just ask one question? Regarding the
construction managenent, you're part of t he

devel opnent team So you're really an advisor to the
devel opnent teanf? You're not doing the construction?
Once t he drawi ngs and everyt hing are conpl eted, you'l
go out for bids, get a general contractor. So you're
sort of the project manager/constructi on managenent
for the devel opnent teanf

M5. SHERROD: Yes, correct.

COWMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: Ckay. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Thanks. Phillip Lee?
s M. Lee here? Ckay. | don't knowif M. Giffin

is in favor or opposed, but if he's in favor, you can
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come forward now. Are you in favor or opposed?

MR GRIFFIN. (Of mcrophone.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Oh, okay. Ckay.
Okay. Since the mke won't pick you up, M. Giffin
said he's in favor, but would like not to testify.

M. Jordan from the Tubman PTA? Sharon
Bovell from Tubnman? Janie Boyd? Dd you want to
testify?

M5. BOYD: (O f mcrophone.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:. Ckay. | think she's
going to rely on the other two folks.

| s there anyone el se who'd like to testify
in support?

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAIl RPERSON M TTEN. Ckay. |I'Il let you
two decide since you're both from the sanme place.
Who's going to get the five mnutes? Are you going to
take the five m nutes?

MS. BOVELL: | won't take five m nutes.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN.  Ckay.

MS. BOVELL: Good eveni ng, Madam Chair and
t he ot her Conm ssioners. | am Sharon Bovell and | am
principal of Harriet Tubman El enentary.

Harriet Tubman is located at 1301 13th

Street. W' re about three bl ocks south and we take up
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the entire block between Irving and Kenyan, 11th to
13th, so we take up that square bl ock. So the project
is |like about three blocks away from our school.

And we are a diverse community. | have
445 students. Fifty-one percent are H spanic, 44
percent are African-American, three percent Asian, one
percent African and one percent Caucasi an. Tubman, we
provi de a strong i nstructional programfor students in
an i nclusive coomunity and environnment with teachers,
support staff, parents and community working
col |l aboratively to support student growh and
devel opnent .

I n our | ast year for an achi evenent of our
No Child Left Behind goals, we did achieve themin
mat hematics. W didn't quite make it in reading, so
that is our focus, is literacy devel opnment w th our
chi | dren. And in our superintendent Dr. Cdifford
Janey's Decl aration of Education Goal 3, he addresses
the creation of cultures of transparency, open
comuni cation and collaboration to support high-
gual ity teaching and | earni ng.

M. Hall has denmonstrated his desire and
willingness to support Harriet Tubman by he has
attended PTA neetings, we've had many di scussi ons and

t al ks about our vision, his vision and his m ssion and
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how he can support the school and our needs and | do
know how we're going to spend that noney.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Ckay.

MS. BOVELL: He has shared his belief and
actually really cane on as a partner with Harriet
Tubman and our contmunity.

As you know, the conmunity is going
t hrough a change. And so when | |ook at three years
ago our enroll ment was over 600 and so over the years
it has declined. And one of the reasons is the |ack
of affordabl e housing, that our parents and conmunity
have had to, you know, nove out of the nei ghborhood.
So this is very inportant to Harriet Tubnman and dear
to our hearts. And | want to commend and support M.
Hall on this project because he has been, of all the
devel opers that have cone into our area, he was the
first and only one to conme to the school and say,
"This is what we are proposing. How are we going to
fit in wth your community?" And | tell ny children
all the time and ny staff that children who |earn
together learn to live together. And so it is the
i nclusive environment that starts at school and then
takes our children onto their community. And this
project is a true exanple of an inclusive community

learning to live and work together. And that is one
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of the things | want ny children to take on as they
become citizens of the world, because our world is
shrinking and we are involved in interacting with so
many peopl e of diverse cultures, of different |evels.
And all of us should be able to work and Iive together
harnoni ously. And | think this project, like this,
and one of the things that makes this project so
unique is that it nodels what we are teaching our
children. So | amhere in very strong support of M.
Hal | .

And one of the nmaj or needs we have for our
building is an electrical upgrade. W have conputers
in every room we have a conputer |lab. They're comning
into do the wireless wiring of the building, but we
don't have the power to support that. And so as we're
| ooking at |iteracy being our focus, our children need
to have the abilities to get on the conputers, the
cyber world, and to becone a part of that globa
| ear ni ng. So that is our main goal for the funds,
woul d be an el ectrical upgrade. And then in | ooking
at our outside, we haven't had fencing. Tubnman was
opened in 1970 and that same fence has been there
since 1970.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Yes.

MS. BOVELL: So that is the other end of
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the project that we would do, is we would |ike to get
an iron-kind of fencing for the surrounding field. W
do open our field to soccer | eagues and to other, you
know, conmunity activities. And so the upkeep is also
an issue. And we do want this to go through the PTA
so that we can be assured of what we need will be
spent on what we need.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Ckay.

M5. BOVELL: Ckay. So thank you

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. Great. Thank you.

M. Jordan?

MR. JORDAN:. Good eveni ng, Madam Chai r and
Comm ssi on. My name is WIIiam Jordan. I'"m the
president of Harriet Tubman's PTA as well as an
i nvol ved nenber of the conmunity.

My youngest child who's inthe third grade
is nowat Harriet Tubman El enentary School. | have a
si xth grader who attended the school and | al so have
a ninth grader who's now at Benjam n Banneker High
School who attended Harriet Tubman El ementary School .

We've all heard different things about
D.C. Public Schools, but due to the staff and the
principal, | entrusted themwith ny children and |'ve
been very pl eased after nuch hesitation in keeping ny

children in that school. And as such, |'ve been very
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dedi cated to that school

M. Hall and Hope 7, which | actually net
nore i n anot her capacity as trying to advocate for the
11t h Street corridor and devel oprment in our comunity
ishowl!l initially nmet him he i medi ately stepped in,
began t o support PTA fundraisers. 1'd go by and visit
and we worked together, always asking how can he be
supportive of the school. At a banquet we had | ast
year he made an announcenent that he was willing to --
after being involved with the school and seeing the
| ove and support not only fromnyself but from other
parents for the school, that he wanted to make
$100, 000 donati on which becane part of the community
benefits package that we ultinately have.

And so | urge you all to please support
this project. Wrk creative to find ways to nake it
wor k.  Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. Geat. Thanks. Any
guestions?

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:. | know you' re goi ng
to nmeet your reading goals soon. | nean, | can just
feel it. Sounds like a great school and very

supportive community. Thanks for com ng down.

Anyone else who'd like to testify in
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support ?

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: kay. | have one
person on the list in opposition. M. Henderson?

| s there anyone el se who'd liketo testify
i n opposition?

MR.  HENDERSON: Good evening, Madam
Chai rman, Menbers of the Conmi ssion. M nane is John
Henderson. | live at 1102 Monroe Street contiguous to
t he Thomason property that M. Hall nentioned. Wth
me this evening is also ny partner, Richard
Debest erson, al so speaking on his behalf. He al so
owns the property at 1104 Monroe Street, so we're very
cl ose to the subject property.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Are those single-
famly dwel lings?

MR. HENDERSON: The 1102 is a single-
famly where we live and then the 1104 has two units.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Ckay.

MR. HENDERSON: Actual ly, although I check
t he opposition box --

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:.  Ckay.

MR. HENDERSON: -- | actually hope the
project noves forward. W' re very much in favor of

the concept as was described by the Ofice of
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Pl anning. The property itself is extrenely inportant
for the revitalization of the 11th Street conmerci al
corridor and the concept is extrenely inportant for
retai ni ng | owand noder at e-i nconme, you know, residents
in the comunity because that particular area is
gentrifying at a very rapid pace and many people are
becom ng di spl aced. So we're very, you know, hopef ul
and that the project will indeed be successful.

So | have actually one major concern and
perhaps a question about if the upgrade in the zoning
is granted, you know, what that wll nean. The
concern is regarding the parking and just the fact
that the three spaces for the 28 units is very small.
And as you're probably already aware, this is a
nei ghbor hood that hundreds of units of housing are
bei ng added around t he Col unbi a Hei ghts Metro station
which is, you know, wthin, you know, a seven to
eight-mnute walk from the site and there wll
probably be additional housing built at the Georgia-
Petworth. The parking is already becom ng a prem um
and so we're facing probably a situation as was

descri bed i n the Washi ngt on Post yesterday where, you

know, we'll have residential parking permts and
spaces reserved for a Flexcar and so there will be
very |little, you know, parking available on the
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street. So, in the event that, you know, residents of
t hi s buil di ng, you know, have aut onobi |l es then there's
a question as to exactly where they're going to be
abl e to park.

Regarding the zoning itself, we're
concerned -- you know, there was a trenendous |itany
of benefits that this project would confer and given
the change in economic clinmate, if the project were
not able to go forward as prom sed, and the zoning,
you know, upgrade was given whether the devel oper
would gain a windfall and able to transfer the
property, sell it, you know, to a devel oper who woul d
put in, you know, |uxury housing or whatever, whichis
currently in demand in the area. So that is, you
know, the concern and we woul d hope that that would
not be the case.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Ckay.

MR. HENDERSON. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Questions for M.
Hender son?

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. The one thing, just
for your benefit, the reason why we were getting cl ear
about what was being proffered was because those

become binding and you don't get -- it's all or
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not hing. So, you know, you don't get -- it's a PUD
rel ated map anendnment. So the map amendnent goes with
all of the proffers. So anong those proffers are the
ni ne affordabl e units.

MR. HENDERSON. All right. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:. | hope that answers
t hat question for you.

Ms. G ordano, did you have any questions
on cross?

M S . Gl ORDANO

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. Ckay. Thank you.

s there anyone else who would like to
testify in favor or in opposition?

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Dd you want to
testify, ma' an?

M S . B O Y D

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Oh, okay. Ckay.
See, we're very friendly. There's no reason not to
come down and say sonet hi ng.

M5. BOYD: (Of mcrophone.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: I'"'m glad to hear

that. Didyou fill out two witness cards for us? D d
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you fill out the little cards?

M5. BOYD: (Of mcrophone.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Ckay. Wbuld you turn
on your m ke for me? And before you | eave, nmake sure
you give those to the court reporter.

M5. BOYD: | wll.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Ckay.

M5. BOYD: Can you hear ne now?

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: | can.

M5. BOYD: Ckay. Thank you. | want to
say good evening to everyone and it's a pl easure being
here, and you all neighbors. And |I'm here because |
couldn't stand it any longer. | said |l didn't want to
say anything, but --

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  There is one thing
|'"d like to begin by saying, which is your nane.

M5. BOYD: Ch, ny nane is Jani e Boyd.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN.  Ckay.

MS. BOYD: And | am a grandparent of
Harriet Tubman El ementary School. | have a darling
grandson who just graduated |ast year fromthere and
he's now in Shore Junior H gh School. And |I'm happy
to be a part of Harriet Tubnman School . This is a
famly comunity school

| am-- | decide to say sonething at |ast
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because parking is a issue now and it's not fromthe
residents who are living there. It is from other
folks who are conming visiting and |eave their cars
forever. But | also would like you to know that this
community works very <closely wth our police
department and things will be done about that.

| am in support of this program this
devel opnent and | hope and pray that it wll go

through with flying colors, with the best success.

And parking will be no nore of a problemthen than it
is now. W need affordable housing. |1 ama advocate
for the community. | amat Harriet Tubman facilities

every Thursdays i ssuing food along with 15 or 20 ot her
people and we need this because people are comnng
getting in line, getting shopping carts of food that
is donated to the community because they cannot pay
the high rent they are now paying and buy food. And
so we need affordable housing and |I'm asking you
| adi es and gentl enmen and nost of all God Almghty to
bl ess this project. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Thank you, Ms. Boyd.

Sir? There you go.

MR. BIBBS: Good afternoon, Chairman. M
name is Carl Bibbs. |'ve been know M. Hall since

Sept enber 2005. He had did a ot for the community
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and for the kids in the community and for the church.
|"ve been living in that building for 47 years and |
| ooking forward to nove back in there and | hope you
all let the progress, you know, go through so | can
hurry up and get back in there.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Ckay.

MR. BIBBS: Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:. Thank you. Anybody
else who'd like to testify?

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:. Okay. Ms. @G ordano,
M. Hall, did you want to close out with anything?

M5. GORDANO W have a little contact
| ens situation.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: At | east he has it.
It didn't fall on the ground.

M5. G ORDANG In closing, you know tinme
is of the essence with the project, as usual.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Yes.

M5. GORDANO And we are ready to take
addi ti onal notes on what el se you require.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN.  Ckay.

M5. G ORDANO And the only request that
hopeful |l y we can get these subm ssions in quickly for

consideration | guess by the Zoning Conm ssion. I
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don't know if the February neeting would be -- it
probably woul d be possi bl e naybe.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: | don't think there's
anything that we're --

M5. 3 ORDANO  No?

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN. -- asking for that
you probably can't readily produce.

M5. G ORDANG Exactly. So with seven
days to the ANC, | think we could probably make the
agenda of the February neeting then.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Ckay. Then | ets just
run down the itens. W need material sanples, we need
the circulation plan, we need the affordability
docunents that M. Hall testified about, we need the
fl oor plans showi ng the affordable units, we need you
to be nore specific about the timng of the nonetary
contributions and when you think those would be
triggered and we need greater specificity about the
$100, 000 donation, although we got some tonight, but
|'d like to have that in witing al so.

Ms. Schellin, what else did we have?

MRS. SCHELLIN. | have two ot her things.
One, you had nentioned narrow | anguage regardi ng the
i nt ended nei ghbor hood-serving retail. | don't knowi f

that's still an issue or not.
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CHAl RPERSON M TTEN: I T's not because M.

Hal | said they're not proffering the --

MR. HALL: They're not going to proffer
it? And then the other thing was just specifics
regarding the ANC use of the space that's being
proffered for them

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: Right. To the extent
that that's a proffer that you want us to consider,
we're going to need greater specificity there.

So again, | don't think any of that is
going to be nuch for you all -- | think all of that is
just for you to package for us. So then what's the --

MRS. SCHELLIN: If they can provide that
by Monday, January 30th; it's a week fromtoday, 3:00
p.m and then we would give the ANC until 3:00 p.m
February 6t h.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  Ckay.

MRS. SCHELLIN: And then we coul d consi der
it at our February 13th neeting.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN.  Ckay.

M5. G ORDANG Wuld we need to provide
t he proposed order within the sane tinme frane?

MRS. SCHELLIN. February 6th.

M5. G ORDANG  February 6th. Okay.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:  You're not required
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to do that.

M. G ORDANO.  Ri ght.

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN: But as you wel | know,
it helps to expedite things for you to draft the
or der.

Al right? Everybody clear about the
dates and so on?

(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RPERSON M TTEN:.  All right. Then I'd
i ke to thank everybody who cane down tonight. And so
the intent is that the filing will be delivered so
that this will be on our schedule for our February
13th regul ar neeting of the Comm ssion. And we hold
those at the same tine, 6:30, and in this room

So if you'd like to come and watch the
deli beration, you're nore than welconme. O you can
foll ow what's happening with staff, if you |like, and
Ms. Schellin can answer any questions that you m ght
have.

So if there's nothing further, this
heari ng i s now adj our ned.

(The neeting was adjourned at 8:12 p.m)
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